Earth Negotiations Bulle

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 94 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Wednesday, 11 Nov. 1998
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE FOURTH UNFCCC Delegates adopted most of the text unchanged, modifying the
CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES preamble to reflect the role of the private sector in some countries. A
10 NOVEMBER 1998 paragraph requesting SBSTA to establish a consultative process to

Draft decisions and conclusions were considered by the Subsidég@ysider the issues listed in the Annex engendered debate. The G-7
Body for Scientific and Technological Advice (SBSTA), the Subsid CHINA favored retaining reference to a technology transfer mecha-
iary Body for Implementation (SBI) and a joint SBSTA/SBI contact Nism and considering the paragraph along with a bracketed referenc
group and plenary. Delegates could not reach agreement and a nuifyee Annex, which required consideration of appropriate mecha-
of decisions will be forwarded to the COP plenary with brackets. Tiésms for technology transfer with the UNFCCC. The PHILIPPINES

joint session concluded at 4:10 am. suggested a body was needed to operationalize the process, adding
that experts involved in the consultative process should be from the
SBSTA FCCC roster of experts. The US, with the EU, said the aim of the

Under the draft conclusions on impacts of single projects on engisnsultative process should be “meaningful and effective action.” Th
sions in the commitment period, (FCCC/SBSTA/1998/CRP.9; FCGE/77/CHINA favored “technology transfer mechanism,” but indi-
SBSTA/1998/CRP.10; FCCC/SBSTA/1998/MISC.11 and Add.1), cated willingness to accept “meaningful and effective action” if
SBSTA would further consider the issue at its tenth session. brackets were removed from the Annex.

Supporting the draft decision, AOSIS cautioned against granting The Chair closed the formal meeting and began informal discus-
exemptions prior to the Protocol’s entry into force and said Parties sions. The EU said the Annex was not a negotiated text and supporte
should explore other options. ICELAND stressed that only projectshe US proposal to leave the debate to the high-level segment, as it
with demonstrable global benefit would fall under the draft decisionydfated to other issues under negotiation. The Chair proposed compr
they could not be accommodated within the Party’s assigned amoyhise wording. After some debate, the Chair invited the EU, the US an
On the issue of precedence, he said other cases should be valuedipg G-77/China to discuss the issue informally.

their own merits. The draft conclusions and decisions were adopted. ggsTA reconvened at approximately 12:30 am. Chair Chow

The draft conclusions (FCCC/SBSTA/1998/CRP.10) on methogeported that participants in the afternoon's consultations had agreed
ological issues noted the preparations of a workshop to be held frog the Chair make a proposal. He proposed the following: "to achieve
9-11 December to resolve the identified methodological issues onagreement on a framework for meaningful and effective actions." The
GHG inventories. It requested the Secretariahter alia,prepare a  reference to "technology transfer mechanism" would be deleted. The
report on the revised guidelines for Annex | communications, partigsizt would also have SBSTA draw from the "roster of experts.” A

larly on the GHG inventory section, and consult with the IPCC on ayracketed reference in the Annex would ask whether existing multila
comprehensive joint plan for the inventory programme. The conclusrgl mechanisms were sufficient.

sions were adopted with some textual modifications. The Chair attempted to accept the text, but the US objected.
SBSTA adopted its draft report for the ninth session (FCCC/  CHINA expressed regret that implementation of this FCCC commit-

SBSTAA/1998/L.8). The final report will include the RUSSIAN  ment was being delayed once again. SBSTA accepted the text, and t

FEDERATION's objection to procedural steps embodied inthe  Chair said the record would note the US objection. The US, supporte

recommendation on the relationship between the Montreal Protocqgiy JAPAN, said the action was inappropriate and a statement in the

and the FCCC (FCCC/SBSTA/1998/CRP.8). record was insufficient. He said the record should indicate that the
The draft conclusions on technology transfer (FCCC/SBSTA/ decision was accepted in the face of objection. He will raise the issue

1998/CRP.11) requested the SBSTA Chair to establish a consultatiehe COP plenary.

process, constituting regional workshops and meetings to implement

FCCC Article 4.5 (technology transfer). Parties are invited to provi

submissions to the Secretariat by 15 March 1999 in response to the In describing the results of the contact group on FCCC Articles 4.¢

issues listed in the Annex to the decision. and 4.9 (adverse effects), Co-Chair Bo Kjellen (Sweden) said the tex

reflects the objectives and there is general agreement on outstandin

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Chad Carpenter LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Angela Churie <churie@I.kth.se>| Victol
Kellett <vkellett@iisd.ca>, Greg Picker <gregpicker@hotmail.com>, Lavanya Rajamani LL.M. <Irajamani@hotmail.com>. The Riitoelia Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The WWW Content Editor is Petpfddrear@ecology.u-net.com> and
WWW design by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca>. Digital photos by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. Digital engineering byBeaickBavid @virtualstockholm.net> and
Chris Spence <spencechris@hotmail.com>. Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenman@iisd.ca>. French translation by Mongi GadgpGiadidum@enb.intl.tn>. The
Sustaining Donors of tHgulletinare the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada (through CIDA) and the United Stdi&sS&iug
General Support for tHaulletinduring 1998 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID), the German Federal Minigitigrohent
(BMU), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the European Céb@)tythe Ministries of Environment and
Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Ministries of Foreign AffaiEsn@nadnment of Norway, the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. SpeeifiltcsENB coverage of COP-4 is
provided by Germany’s GTZ and the UNFCCC SecretariatBliiletin can be contacted in Buenos Aires at (15) 170-7613, by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and fax: +1-2{12-64
0206. IISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinionsekpiestbdiegotiations Bulletiare those|
of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11ISD and other funders. Excerpts Earththiegotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only
and only with appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions &uletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists <http://iisd.ca/enb/email.asp> and full multimedia coverage o
COP-4 can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/climate/ba/.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Wednesday, 11 November 1998 TRy ... Vol. 12 No. 94 Page 2

issues. The two bracketed paragraphs in the preamble reflected thdeveloped for these mechanisms.” The discussion on principles wot
lack of time for full negotiation. The G-77/CHINA said there were be limited to the “application of existing principles,” and the refer-
compromises even in the unbracketed text. He said the group woukhces to FCCC Articles 4.8 and 4.9 (adverse effects) would be delete
accept the document, including the brackets, to preserve momentum. At the request of G-77/CHINA, the Parties reconvened later to
The US, with the EU, said the impression of general agreement wagiscuss the draft as amended by the Co-Chairs. SAUDI ARABIA, witt
misleading. He said the contact group never discussed this text andATAR, said it would support the Co-Chairs’ amended text, if FCCC
there was no agreement on the work plan. SAUDI ARABIA stated Articles 4.8 and 4.9 were included. UGANDA said all the references t
there was no consensus and suggested that if the whole text is bragkcCC Articles 4.8 and 4.9 should be deleted, as they were under de
eted, then all texts should be bracketed. eration elsewhere. The Co-Chairs concluded that they would report t
On administrative and financial matters, the contact group Chaithe joint session that contact group could not find a “consensus
reported that no agreement had been reached on the calendar of nmeetality on a way forward.”
ings. The US highlighted concerns regarding dates in the draft deci-
sion. The Executive Secretary reported that since document FCCC?BS-I—A/_S_BI JOINT SESSION . )
SBI/1998/INF.6 was distributed, additional financial contributions had The joint SBSTA/SBI session discussed the review of progress
been received from several Parties. MAURITANIA objected to ~ under the pilot phase of AlJ, Protocol Articles 6, 12, and 17, and prey
changes in the text proposed by the Chair. The text was adopted wigions for COP/MOP-1. On the review of progress under the AlJ pilc
the exclusion of the calendar of meetings. pha_sg, Chair Cornelia Quennet-Thielen (Ge_rmany) presented_a draf
The Co-Chairs of the contact group on national communication%ec's'on (FCCC/SB/1998/CRP.3) based on informal consultations.

from Annex | Parties indicated that consensus was reached. The G-#9/C-77/CHINA opposed text on crediting for AlJ pilot phase
CHINA proposed bracketing a paragraph in the Annex that notes mgilects and proposed an amendment on continuing the AlJ pilot
Annex | Parties will not reduce GHGs to 1990 levels. They said thi1@se, focusing on developing countries. The US and SLOVENIA
issue became linked to discussion on FCCC Article 4.2 (a) and (b) ©PP0sed the change, noting it excluded certain groups of Parties.
(adequacy of commitments). MAURITANIA asked the Chair not to AUSTRALIA said incentives were needed for the private sector. The

reopen debate on an agreed decision. The text was accepted with draft decision was forwarded to Plenary. o _
brackets. On Protocol Articles 6, 12 and 17, Co-Chairs Luiz Gylvan Meira

Filho (Brazil) and Yvo de Boer (the Netherlands) reported that the joir

contact group Co-Chair Paul Maclons (South Africa) reported on tHPntact group did n%t agree (f)n a draft work programme. The EU and
draft decision. The EU bracketed a paragraph regarding requests t0 ! RALIA and others put forward the documents they had
Secretariat. The G-77/CHINA bracketed the entire text. CHINA angroduced for the contact group. Co-Chairs Kante and Chow distribute
SAUDI ARABIA said the Chair should not allow further negotiation® draft decision on the work progamme on mechamsms.,The G-77/
on the text. After lengthy debate, the Chair called on delegates to CHINA urged discussion of the contact group Co-Chairs’ draft, with

; ; A opposing the use of other documents. SOUTH AFRICA and
respect the rules and said the entire text would be bracketed for co - . L .
eration by the COP Plenary. E%QNDA rejected the G-77/CHINA position, saying they were

. . aware the group had discussed the new proposal. With the US, ELl
On the second review of adequacy of FCCC Article 4.2 (a) and (),
contact group Co-Chair Jennifer Irish (Canada) reported that the g %} NADA, JAPAN, KUWAIT and AUSTRALIA, the AFRICAN

'EHOUP favored bracketing the new Co-Chairs’ draft entirely. VENE.

On initial national communications from non-Annex | Parties,

(Zzimbabwe) said the difficulty on reaching a consensus was based Qn,

. . : : . Chair’s text. Co-Chair Kante suggested forwarding both texts to
different interpretations of adequacy of commitments. The Chair asﬁ%?Plenary: the draft work plan prop%%ed by the contagt group Co-

delegates t.o forward the five.draft decisions to the COP Plenary. Chairs and the draft decision proposed by the SBSTA/SBI Co-Chairs
Co-Chair John Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda) presented the draftye|egates agreed but it remained uncertain which of the texts would |
decision on the financial mechanism. He noted that there were no .4 keted.

brackets in the text, but one group had indicated its dissent. The EU .- .
' : . . , On matters related to decision 1/CP.3, paragraph 6 (preparations
bracketed paragraphs on GEF funding for implementing adaptat|or|;0r COP/MOP-1) the Chair of the informal Eons%ItaR[ions(PEs%en

responses and meeting full agreed costs. The US bracketed langu
on international centers. The G-77/CHINA bracketed the entire tex%%z]?oe grenrg ((:'(\)Ar? Srtsrg?riltésﬁgdosf)f é?ep (;) gﬁ?ntftz)?:nvz\;?;)@g:f vr/]i(t)tg ;%ngrl%deexd

Zpi?stri)i(rt] tVI’\]laSSeSaSCi((:)?]p(tEg gg?sbégc}lﬁfgggﬂtg)e n adopted the draft reé’c%[aining an initial list of work. Co-Chair Chow suggested further
: deliberations. SAUDI ARABIA said it would accept this on the condi-

JOINT CONTACT GROUP ON MECHANISMS tion that the issue of Protocol Articles 4.8 and 4.9 (adverse effects) b

The contact group on flexibility mechanisms considered the initf@solved at COP-4. The Co-Chairs forwarded the paper to the COP.
work programme on Protocol mechanisms. In addition to the G-77/ MAURITANIA and the Co-Chairs proposed a draft decision
China proposal submitted earlier, draft work programmes were ~ urging Parties to sign and ratify the Kyoto Protocol. JAPAN recalled
submitted by AUSTRALIA (on behalf of CANADA, ICELAND, that the draft decision on Article 4.2(a) and (b) contained a bracketec
NEW ZEALAND, NORWAY, the RUSSIAN FEDERATION and the sentence urging Parties to ratify. The US said it was not in a position
US), JAPAN, SWITZERLAND and the Co-Chairs. After extensive Urge ratification and suggested postponing the decision. The draft
deliberations, Co-Chair Yvo de Boer (Netherlands) suggested text@gcision was forwarded to the COP.
amendments. The title of the work programme would include a foot-
note stating “the existence of elements in this list is without prejudice THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
to inclusion of these items in the rules, modalities and guidelines Presidential Ceremony:The Presidential Ceremony is expected

to begin at 10:00 am.



